
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

November 19, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Shaun Lagueux, Betsy Schneider, Rick Alpers, Paul 

Manganiello, and Interim Town Administrator Merelise O’Connor.   

The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM. 

Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from November 5, 2015 

seconded by Ms. Schneider. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of approving the minutes.   

Consent agenda: Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the consent agenda as adjusted dated 

November 19, 2015 to include the items named therein, seconded by Ms. Schneider.  Mr. Manganiello 

asked if there were sufficient funds in Accrued Wages.  Mrs. Cote replied that there was.  The Board 

voted 5-0 to approve the consent agenda. 

Hazardous Waste Day Update:  Tom Keegan presented updates to the Board.  Hazardous Waste Day 

was held on August 1st.  It went well with 95 Bristol households participating this year.  Participation of 

all other towns has increased also.  A survey with five questions was conducted and banners were used 

to advertise.  The 2015 municipal appropriation was $78,063 and the total disposal costs totaled 

$89,960. Lakes Region Planning was left with a deficit of $11,897.  Next year they are planning a 3% 

increase but in future years they may have to do something else to keep the costs under control.  The 

traffic flow for next year needs to be configured differently. Traffic should be moved further into the 

state yard to help with the transfer station traffic.  Mrs. Cote asked if signs on 104 would help. Mr. 

Keegan replied that signs to inform people what lane to be in would help. Ms. Schneider suggested that 

volunteers could help explain the lanes. Mr. Manganiello suggested that the times be staggered as it 

bottlenecked at 8am.  Mr. Keegan replied that Lakes Region Planning is the contractor and they dictate 

the time. Mr. Keegan commented that there were 11 great volunteers this year and that helped.  Mrs. 

Cote asked when the next contract is due.  Mr. Keegan replied that a letter of intent will be sent in the 

spring and then a bill will be sent out. Police Chief Lewis commented that a patrol officer can be 

assigned to help with traffic.  

Town Clock:  Tom Keegan from the Bristol United Church of Christ Trustees updated the Board on the 

painting of the clock faces.  The town owns the clock in the belfry of the church.  The front of the church 

is being painted next year and the clock needs painting too.  A quote was received from John Thompson 

regarding the four clock faces that the town would be responsible for. The first quote is for $6,000 with 

$4,000 for the lift rental and scaffolding.  Some wood has fallen off the clock faces and needs to be 

repaired also. The cost for repairs is $40 per hour plus materials.  The best estimate for the town portion 

of the painting and repairs is between $4,000- $5,000.  Ms. Schneider asked if the painter is capable of 

repairing the wood. Mr. Keegan replied that he is. Mrs. Cote commented that the town is okay to paint 

the faces but that it is just a matter of budgeting for it in the town clock budget line.  Mr. Alpers 



suggested that a warrant article be submitted for this and that enough money for repairs be included. 

Mrs. Cote commented that the town needs to work with the church so that only the percent of the area 

that the town owns is determined. Mrs. Cote asked Mr. Keegan to get a closer amount for a warrant 

article to be written.  Mr. Keegan replied that he will get John Thompson to break down the numbers 

further and he will try to get a percent of ownership too. 

Historical Society:  Mr. Keegan informed that Board that the Historical Society is asking for permission 

to install lights on the Old Fire Station to illuminate the old bell. LED photo sensitive lights will be used. 

Jeff Goodrum is donating his services to install the light and the Historical Society will pay for the 

materials.  The annual cost for electricity for the light will be $2 per year. Mr. Lagueux made a motion to 

give permission to do the project, seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion. 

Decorating Committee:  Mr. Keegan presented the Board with the committee’s decorating ideas for the 

town tree lighting.  The tree will be surrounded with garland and the block will be decorated. A spotlight 

will be place at the Old Town Hall. Garland will be hung on the bridges and luminaries placed in the 

square. 18 wreaths have been ordered at $11 each. There is money in the budget to support this.  The 

committee is looking for the Board’s support to go ahead with these plans.  Ms. Schneider commented 

that there is a person, Lisa Hodgson, who is looking to become a Decorating Committee member.  Ms. 

Schneider moved to accept Lisa Hodgson as a Decorating Committee member, seconded by Mr. 

Lagueux. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion.  

Police Department Grant:  Chief Lewis presented a grant proposal to the Board for approval. The grant 

is for DWI patrols for this year into next year from October 1st to September 30, 2016. The amount of 

the grant is $6,971. Ms. Schneider asked if this has been done before. Mrs. Cote replied that it has.  Mr. 

Alpers made a motion to accept the grant and to give the interim Town Administrator authority to sign 

off on the grant, seconded by Mr. Lagueux.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

Town Administrator’s Report:  

Select Board Items:   

Janet Cote introduced the new Library Director, Brittany Overton, and welcomed her to the town.  Ms. 

Overton replied that she looks forward to working with the town and she is excited to be here. 

Mrs. Cote informed the Board that Kelley Lacasse has asked about the town hours for Christmas Eve and 

New Year’s Eve.  Mr. Alpers commented that in the past the offices have closed at noon on Christmas 

Eve. Last year the Board gave the employees everything with pay.  Mr. Alpers is okay with the offices 

closing at noon. Mrs. Cote informed the Board that two employees will be available for coverage of the 

Town Clerk/Tax Collector’s office. Mr. Alpers replied that the decision regarding that is Raymah’s. 

Mrs. Cote informed the Board that Lakes Region Planning Commission sent a contract to complete the 

application for the Historical Resources Chapter of the Master Plan revision.  There is money in the 



budget for this.  Mr. Alpers made a motion to execute the contract with Lakes Region Planning 

Commission, seconded by Mr. Lagueux. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

Mrs. Cote informed the Board that a letter was received from Merle Lyons from the Lions Club regarding 

the insurance issue for damage to Kelley Park when the circus was in town.  Mrs. Cote asked for 

authorization to send a letter to Merle to see if he can work with the insurance company as there hasn’t 

been any action with this.  Mr. Lagueux asked if the letter is written and if Merle is prepared for the 

letter.  Mrs. Cote replied that the letter is written and Mr. Lyons said it wouldn’t be an issue.  Mr. 

Lagueux made a motion to send the letter to Merle Lyons as written and to authorize Mrs. Cote to sign 

it, seconded by Ms. Schneider. The Board voted 5-0 to approve the motion. 

Mrs. Cote informed the Board that there is an insurance rider that allows for domestic partners to have 

the same coverage as others on the policies. Mr. Lagueux asked if this was approved last year. Mrs. Cote 

replied that is was approved and it is a continuation of services. Mr. Lagueux made a motion to 

authorize the Chair to sign the rider, seconded by Mr. Alpers. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion. 

Mrs. Cote informed the Board that the owners at Hemlock Brook Road were contacted as well as their 

lawyers.  They were informed that there needs to be clarification on the Special Use Permit due to the 

work being within 50 feet of wetlands.  Ms. O’Connor commented that it has been determined that the 

road is a class 6 road and it is owned by the town.  The 50 feet determination seems to be hard to 

determine since the road has been widened. Mr. Lagueux commented that he is not sure if a permit 

comes into play with roadwork vs. site work.  Mrs. Cote replied that the ordinance is written that if work 

is being done in the wetlands a permit is needed and the road crosses the wetlands. Mark is going to 

determine the measurement.  Ms. Schneider recused herself from any vote or discussion regarding this 

issue.   

Mrs. Cote updated the Board regarding the Northern Pass SEC application.  The SEC deemed the 

application incomplete with regards to wetlands and water quality. The clock may have started on the 

intervenors status. Mr. Alpers asked if the application was accepted or denied. Mrs. Cote replied that it 

wasn’t denied.  Mr. Alpers commented that the clock doesn’t start until the application is accepted. Mrs. 

Cote commented that the Conservation Commission has been told that they can start the intervenors 

status.  Ms. Schneider commented that she doesn’t see any harm in sending the letter to intervene.  Mr. 

Alpers commented that he is unsure.  Ms. O’Connor will find out if the Board has to send the letter. 

Mr. Lagueux informed the Board that he has a proposal from Colin Brown regarding the Jeffers Road 

situation.  The survey of Jeffers Road and the right of way to include the items listed has a total cost 

between $700 and $950. It will take 3 to 4 weeks to finish the work.  Mr. Lagueux made a motion to 

accept the proposal from Colin Brown, seconded by Mrs. Cote.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion.  

Mr. Lagueux asked for clarification and reasoning from the Chair on how an employment decision was 

made without the Board’s approval.  Mr. Lagueux commented that he thinks the Chair overstepped her 

authority. Mrs. Cote replied that the Board made a decision in accepting a resignation and the Board 



made a decision to hire an interim.  The Board did not make any other decision for any other 

employment piece.  Mr. Lagueux commented that the Board did not make a decision and that he 

believes that the Chair acted unilaterally and that she did not have the right to do that. Mr. Alpers 

commented that he also disagrees with the Chair and that it was pretty open about having that 

individual here for the meeting tonight, for the second round of interviews, and for the budget meeting 

on December 5th. This was said at the Board meetings and Mr. Alpers is pretty surprised about what 

happened last week.  Ms. Schneider commented that it is a contract situation and it is important for 

people who work here to have one boss and that it was clouding the issue. Ms. Schneider commented 

that this was one of the most difficult decisions that Mrs. Cote would have to make. Mr. Lagueux asked 

who made the decision. Mrs. Cote replied that she made the decision in talking with Michael. Ms. 

Schneider commented that when a contract ends the town can’t have someone who doesn’t have a 

contract making decisions in town. Mr. Alpers commented that the decision should have been made as a 

Board and that the town would have saved a lot of money if the interim administrator wasn’t needed as 

Michael could have given the town a couple of weeks of assistance. Mrs. Cote commented that the 

contract was done on November 10th and the best decision was not to have someone volunteer their 

time so that decision was made. Mr. Lagueux commented that the Board should have been consulted 

before the decision was made. 

Mr. Alpers informed the Board that Kelly Lacasse talked to him about the employee Christmas party.  

The best time for the party is on December 11th at noon at the Fire station. The event will be a potluck 

with the town providing the main dish, a turkey or a ham.  Mr. Alpers suggested reaching out to 

businesses that may help with this.  Mrs. Cote replied that Kelly said that wellness money could be used 

for this. Mr. Alpers suggested that the town offices close from noon to 2:00 that day. 

Mr. Alpers informed the Board that the Economic Development Committee charge is still being 

completed and that he has not been happy with the draft he wrote. Mr. Alpers commented that he 

hopes to have more by the December 4th meeting.   

Mr. Alpers commented that the skating rink needs to be discussed. The location last year can’t really be 

used this year.  Ms. Schneider commented that there are no volunteers and only 3 or 4 people get the 

work done.  This is to the point that the committee may not be able to do the rink this year. There 

almost needs to be a person who is paid to shovel the rink.  Ms. Schneider will contact Dan MacLean 

about when the rink committee is meeting again and will get the word out about volunteers. Mr. Alpers 

suggested that the Board wait to see what the interest is and then decide.  

2016 Budget:  Mrs. Cote informed that Board that the department heads were instructed to draft a 

budget that includes any adjustment to wages based on the wage study.  The wage adjustments should 

include FICA and others. The Water/Sewer department needs adjustments made to their budget. Mr. 

Alpers asked if the draft will be made into a master document. Mrs. Cote replied that it would be. Ms. 

O’Connor commented that the amounts were just collected today. Ms. O’Connor asked for clarification 

on the implementation of the wage and salary study done.  Mrs. Cote replied that it is from the 2006 

study and that COLA adjustments have been averaged since then.  Mrs. Cote commented that the Board 

can go over the master document at the December 3rd meeting and have a discussion on warrant 



articles. Mr. Alpers commented that a warrant article needs to be drafted up for the clock. Ms. O’Conner 

asked if there was also a merit wage practice implemented.  Mr. Lagueux replied that in years past a 

cost of living adjustment was made and that the Board agreed on a percentage to be used.  Last year a 

merit wage based system was used with a 2.5% maximum. The money was budgeted for that amount 

but not all of it was used. 

Public Comment:   

Barbara Greenwood commented that there will be a lot of events downtown after Thanksgiving. Santa’s 

Village will be set up at the TTCC soon. The Village is from December 11th to the 13th.  

Margaret Hoyle commented that the skating rink used to be at the T ball field in the 50s and 60s.  Ms. 

Hoyle asked the Board to check with the state regarding the decorations on the bridges. Ms. Schneider 

commented that this wasn’t a problem last year. 

Ms. Overton commented that in regards to economic development other communities have offered 

reduced tax rates to fix abandoned building. Mr. Alpers replied that the town passed 79-E last year in 

regards to this. 

 

With no other business to come before the Board, at 7:55PM Mr. Alpers made a motion to go into non-

public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a), (b), (d) and (e), seconded by Ms. Schneider.  A roll call vote was 

held. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

At 8:35PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair                  Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Paul Manganiello, Select Board                    Betsy Schneider, Select Board 

 

_____________________________ 

Rick Alpers, Select Board 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 


